Public Document Pack

Rutland County Council
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP.
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340 Oakham

Ladies and Gentlemen,
A meeting of the PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held in the
Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 28th
August, 2018 commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend.
Yours faithfully

Helen Briggs
Chief Executive
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record,
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/mycouncil/have-your-say/
AGENDA
1)

APOLOGIES

2)

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the Planning and Licensing Committee held on 31
August 2018.

3)

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4)

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions from members of the
Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 93.
Any petitions, deputations and questions that have been submitted with prior

formal notice will take precedence over questions submitted at short notice.
Any questions that are not considered within the time limit shall receive a
written response after the meeting and be the subject of a report to the next
meeting.
--o0o-Requests to speak on planning applications will also be subject to the RCC
Public Speaking Rules.
--o0o—
The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes.

5)

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
To receive Report No. 143/2018 from the Strategic Director for Places.
(Pages 3 - 14)

6)

APPEALS REPORT
To receive Report No. 144/2018 from the Strategic Director for Places.
(Pages 15 - 18)

7)

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any other urgent business approved in writing by the Chief
Executive and Chairman of the Committee.
---oOo---

DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE:
Mr E Baines (Chairman)
Ms R Burkitt
Mr B Callaghan
Mr G Conde
Mr W Cross
Mr R Gale
Mr A Mann
Mr M Oxley
Mr A Walters
OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION

Agenda Item 5
Rutland County Council
Planning & Licensing Committee – 28th August 2018
Index of Committee Items
Item

Application No

Applicant, Location & Description Recommendation

1.

2018/0615/FUL

Mr Graham Smith, 6 Woodside,
Ashwell, Oakham, Rutland.
Proposed Vehicular access and
parking for the occupants of 5 Croft
Lane, Ashwell, including erection of
fencing and gates and removal of 1
apple tree.

Appeals Report

Approval

Page
5

15

3

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT NO: 143/2018

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
28TH AUGUST 2018
PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACES
(ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING, TRANSPORT & HIGHWAYS)

5

This page is intentionally left blank

2018/0615/FUL

© Crown copyright and database rights [2013] Ordnance Survey [100018056]

© Crown copyright and database rights [2017]Ordnance Survey [100018056]The
representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of right of way.The representation
of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

All rights reserved. Aerial Photography Copyright ofof
GeoPerspectives™. Photography Date: Summer 2006
MAPS® Aerial Photography Copyright of UK
7
PerspectivesPhotography
Dates: 23-25/07/99, 10/09/99, 25/08/00

Application:
Proposal:

2018/0615/FUL
ITEM 1
Proposed vehicular access and parking for the occupants of 5
Croft Lane, Ashwell, including the erection of fencing and gates
and the removal of 1 No. Apple Tree.
Address:
6 Woodside, Ashwell, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 7LX
Applicant:
Parish
Mr Graham Smith
Ashwell
Agent:
Ward
N/A
Exton
Reason for presenting to Committee:
Staff application
Date of Committee:
28th August 2018

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Use of the land as vehicular access and parking is acceptable, and the proposed fencing
has been revised during the lifetime of the application. The proposal as revised would
not have a detrimental impact upon the character or appearance of Ashwell Conservation
Area, or the setting of adjacent listed buildings.

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL, subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of
this permission.
Reason - To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, labelled site plan 1:1250,
block plan 1:500, 001a (reduced fencing height).
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

The fencing shall be a feather edge fence, painted ‘forest green’ as per the details
submitted to the Local Planning Authority on 27/07/18 & 12/08/18 and retained in that
colour unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority
Reason – To ensure that the style and finished colour of the fence is appropriate, in the
interests of the character and appearance of Ashwell Conservation Area, and the setting
of adjacent listed buildings.

Site & Surroundings
1.

The site is a strip of land adjacent to a private lane (Woodside) in north-east Ashwell. It
is within Ashwell Conservation Area and its Article 4(2) Direction. Woodside also has
several Grade II Listed estate buildings designed by William Butterfield, a prominent
Victorian architect.

Proposal
2.

The proposal is for the creation of a vehicular access and parking area for the occupants
of 5 The Croft (the applicants). This includes clearing the site, laying Tegular paving and
replacing/erecting fencing to the sides of the site. The site would be open to the road,
with gates then set beyond the parking area, 11 metres from the lane. An apple tree
would also be removed to facilitate the parking area.

8

3.

The application site belongs to, but is physically separated from no. 6 Woodside. In
between the site and no. 6 is another small parcel of land that belongs to no. 5 The
Croft, and the applicant currently uses a dilapidated asbestos garage here (and a space
in front) for parking.

4.

If the current application is approved, the applicants would swap their land with the
owners of no. 6 in exchange for the application site. The owner of no. 6 already has
planning permission to demolish the existing asbestos garage, and erect a new brick
garage to match an adjacent one. The proposals are attached as Appendices.

Relevant Planning History
Application
2018/0432/FUL

Description
Build adjoining garage next to existing.

Decision
Approved

Planning Guidance and Policy
National Planning Policy Framework (2018)
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
The Rutland Core Strategy (2011)
CS19 – Promoting good design
CS22 – The historic and cultural environment
Site Allocations and Policies DPD (2014)
SP15 – Design & Amenity
SP20 – The historic environment

Consultations
5.

Ashwell Parish Council
No objection in principle to the application, but there are strong concerns about the
proposal. To preserve the character of this sensitive area of this Conservation Village, it
is preferred that a deciduous hedge is planted rather than the use of high wooden close
fencing.
There is no objection to the installation of Tegular paving, nor to the removal of the apple
tree. It is very important that the historic rural character of these listed William Butterfield
houses should be preserved.

6.

Highway Authority
No objections

7.

Conservation Advisor
No objection to proposal subject to lowering of fencing to 1.5 metres, staining dark green
and matching the similar fence adjacent to the site.

Neighbour Representations
8.

One neighbour objection to the solid fencing – parking space should remain open

9

Planning Assessment
9.

At the Statutory level, Sections 16 (2) and 66 (1) of The The Town & Country Panning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require the decision maker to have
special regard to the desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings, or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which they possesses.

10.

As the site also lies within a conservation area, there is a requirement to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of
the area, in accordance with Section 72 (1) of The Act.

11.

The main issues are the impact of the proposal upon the conservation area, and the
setting of the adjacent listed buildings

12.

The apple tree to be felled is not worthy of retention via a Tree Preservation Order, and
its removal is acceptable. The use of the land as a vehicular access/parking area is also
acceptable as Woodside is a private drive, and there would be no increase in the
number of vehicles using the lane.

13.

With regard to the fencing, it was originally proposed to be 2 metre high panels and
stained to give an orangery finish. Officers shared the concerns raised by the
Parish/local resident, and following a discussion with the applicant, revised details were
submitted to show the fencing lowered to 1.5 metres in height (and 1 metre high for the
first 3 metres back from the lane), stained dark green (‘forest green’), and the style of the
proposed fence changed to match an existing feather edge fence adjacent to the site.

14.

While the suggestion by the Parish of planting a hedge could create a softer boundary
treatment, the site has insufficient width to accommodate such a hedge and still provide
adequate parking provision. It would therefore not be suitable for the proposed use.
Additionally, while somewhat hidden by unkempt ivy/vegetation, there is an existing
wooden fence along the northern boundary (that the proposed fence would replace) that
is dilapidated and in need of replacement.

15.

Notwithstanding the comments received, given the changes made to the proposal, that
there is existing fencing on site, and a similar fence (to what is proposed) adjacent to the
site, it is considered that the proposal as revised would not have a significant detrimental
impact upon the character or appearance of Ashwell Conservation Area, or the setting of
the adjacent listed buildings.

10

Appendix 1
Block Plan

11

Appendix 2
Original fencing proposed

Revised fencing

12

Appendix 3

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

REPORT NO: 144/2018

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
August 2018

APPEALS
Report of the Strategic Director for Places
Strategic Aim:

Ensuring the impact of development is managed

Exempt Information

No

Cabinet Member Responsible:

Councillor Gordon Brown - Deputy Leader; Portfolio
Holder for Planning Policy & Planning Operations

Contact
Officer(s):

Ward Councillors

Steve Ingram, Strategic Director
for Places (Environment, Planning
& Transport & Highways)

Tel: 01572 758868
singram@rutland.gov.uk

Sylvia Bland, Development Control
Manager

Tel: 01572 720950
sbland@rutland.gov.uk

All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee notes the contents of this report

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1. This report lists for Members’ information the appeals received since the last
meeting of the Planning & Licensing Committee and summarises the decisions
made.

2.

APPEALS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING
2.1

APP/A2470/W/18/3202829 – Mr P Andrews - 2017/1112/FUL
Fancourts Farm Shop, The Square, Ryhall, PE9 4HJ
Extension and Conversion of shop to dwelling.
Delegated Decision – Refused due to not being in keeping with the
Conservation Area and detracts from the setting of the listed building

15

opposite the site. Proposed access lacks adequate turning and
visibility.
3.

DECISIONS
3.1

4

APPEALS AGAINST ENFORCEMENTS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING
4.1

5.

As this is only a report for noting it has not needed to address authority,
powers and duties.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
10.1

11.

None

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS
9.1

10.

Alternatives have not been considered as this is an information report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1

9.

None

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
7.1

8.

APP/A2470/C/17/3180262,3180264 – Mr Victor Turner – 2016/0098/CMP
The Paddocks, Glaston Road, Preston
Alleged unauthorised use of land for residential occupation
Appeal Dismissed – 10 August 2018

CONSULTATION
6.1

7.

None

ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS
5.1

6.

APP/A2470/D/18/3199732 – Mr Chris Devlin – 2017/1098/FUL
Old School House, 67 High Street, Ketton
Construction of a natural oak framed gazebo
Appeal Dismissed – 18 July 2018

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed for the
following reason; because there are no relevant service, policy or
organisational changes being proposed.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no such implications.

16

12.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS
12.1

13.

There are no such implications

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE
RECOMMENDATIONS
13.1 This report gives details of decisions received since the last meeting for
noting.

14.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
14.1 There are no such implications

15.

APPENDICES
15.1

None

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.

17

This page is intentionally left blank

